
Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
March 4, 2024 

Page 1 

 
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAPEER 
CITY COMMISSION 

576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, MI 48446 
MARCH 4, 2024 

 
 
6:30 P.M.  CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL Of MARCH 4, 2024, AGENDA  
 
A. MINUTES: 
 1. Minutes of the Regular meeting held February 20, 2024.  
  
B. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 
C. CONSENT AGENDA: 
   
D. BILL LISTING: 
 1. Bill Listing for March 4, 2024. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: ON A ROLL CALL VOTE. 
Approve the Bill Listing for March 4, 2024, in the amount of $2,480,294.88. 
 

E. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 
 
F. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
    
G. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
  
H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT: 

1. Special Event: Hunger Awareness Week 2024 – Fund Raiser, May 10-11, 2024.  
2. Special Event: Warrior Grip Fitness – Heart Warrior 5K - Oakdale Trails Pavilion, June 

15, 2024. 
3. 2024 Presidential Primary Election Turn Out.  
4. Budget Workshop Dates – Discussion. 
5. Various matters. 

 
I. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT: 
 1. None. 
 
J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 1. Appointments to Boards and Commissions. 
 
K. DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Downtown Development Authority Monthly Report.  
   

L. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
 



Lapeer City Commission Agenda 
March 4, 2024 

Page 2 

 
M. CLOSING COMMENTS: 
 1. Commissioners. 
 2. City Manager. 
 3. Mayor. 
 
N. REMINDER OF MEETINGS: 
 Next City Commission Meeting: MONDAY, MARCH 18, 2024, Regular 
 
O. REMINDER OF PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
  
ADJOURNMENT 
 
MATERIAL TRANSMITTAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notice:   
Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation through electronic means in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (810) 664-5231 or by email at clerk@ci.lapeer.mi.us at least two working days in advance 
of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 1 
 

LAPEER CITY COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 

FEBRUARY 20, 2024 
 

A regular meeting of the Lapeer City Commission was held February 20, 2024, at the Lapeer 
City Hall, 576 Liberty Park, Lapeer, Michigan.  The meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Marquardt. 
 Commissioners:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Absent: None. 
 
City Manager:  Mike Womack, present. 
 
Mayor Marquardt led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
33 2024 02-20  AGENDA APPROVAL 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Brady. 
Approve the Agenda for February 20, 2024, as presented. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
34 2024 02-20  MINUTES 
Moved by Petrie.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Approve the minutes of the regular meeting held February 5, 2024, with the correction. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Brad Haggadone, Lapeer County Commissioner, provided an update to the City Commission 
regarding the Laper County Board of Commissioners proceedings.  
 
Ray Clemens gave an invocation.   
 
Scott Jankovic, spoke about his Friday Night Bike application.   
 
Five members of the public spoke about Friday Night Bikes.  
 
Eric Cattane, spoke on behalf of the Rubber Duck Dash and the Fantasy Forest events.   
 
Two members of the public spoke about Friends Helping Friends farmers market.  
 
Emily Barber, a member of the Kiwanis, spoke on the Rubber Duck Dash and Fantasy Forest 
and other fund-raising events. 
 
Tim Lipka read a statement about the Lapeer Days event.  
  



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 2 
 

35 2024 02-20  CONSENT AGENDA 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the consent agenda for February 20, 2024, as presented: 
 1. Special Event:  Friends Helping Friends – East Farmers Market at Tractor Supply Co. 

Saturdays, April 13, 2024, through December 28, 2024. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
36 2024 02-20  BILL LISTING 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Approve the bill listing for February 20, 2024, in the amount of $1,609,528.79. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
PROCLAMATION, RECOGNITIONS AND RESOLUTIONS: 
None. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
37 2024 02-20  ORDINACE AMENDMENT – CHAPTER 15 (ELECTIONS) 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Petrie. 
Adopt an ordinance amendment to Chapter 15 (Elections) § 15-1 Territory included in each 
precinct, of the General Ordinances of the City of Lapeer.  

CITY OF LAPEER 
LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

Ordinance #: 2024-02 
 

An ordinance to amend City of Lapeer elections ordinance by amending § 15-1 Territory 
included in each precinct. 
THE CITY OF LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS: 
ARTICLE I.  
That Ordinance § 15-1Territory included in each precinct is amended to read in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
§ 15-1 Territory included in each precinct. 
 
Hereafter there shall be two election precincts in the City of Lapeer. 
 

A. Precinct Number One shall include all areas north of Genesee Street and west of Fox 
Street extending  to Biddle Street; west of Biddle Street to Cedar Street; west of Cedar 
Street to Second Street; south of Second street to Main Street; and west of Main Street 
to end of City Limits. 

 
B. Precinct Number Two shall include all areas east of Main Street north of Second Street; 

and all areas east of Cedar Street extended to Biddle Street; east of Biddle Street to 
Fox Street; east of Fox street to Genesee Street to end of City Limits; and all areas 
south of Genesee Street to end of City Limits. 



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 3 
 

 
ARTICLE II. SEVERABILITY  
This ordinance and its various articles, paragraphs and clauses thereof are hereby declared to 
be severable. If any article, paragraph or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid, the 
remainder of this amendatory ordinance shall not be affected thereby.  
ARTICLE III. CONFLICT 
All ordinances and provisions of ordinances of the City of Lapeer in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
ARTICLE IV. ADOPTION 
This amendatory ordinance shall be published as required by law and shall take effect after 
publication. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
38 2024 02-20  LAPEER OPTIMIST CLUB – LAPEER DAYS BEER TENT 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Adopt the resolution to authorize the Lapeer Optimist Club to use the city sidewalks and Cedar 
Street north of Nepessing Street for their beer tent on Friday, August 16, 2024, through Sunday, 
August 18, 2024, for Lapeer Days.  
 

CITY OF LAPEER 
RESOLUTION # 2024-02 
LAPEER OPTIMIST CLUB 

 
Authorize the Lapeer Optimist Club to use the city sidewalks and Cedar Street north of 
Nepessing Street for their beer tent on Friday, August 16, 2024, through Sunday, August 18, 
2024. 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the request be approved by the State of 
Michigan, Department of Consumer & Industry Services, Liquor Control Commission. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
39 2024 02-20  M-24 TUNNEL CONNECTION TAP GRANT RESOLUTION 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Adopt the resolution supporting the M-24 Tunnel Connection Project.  
 

CITY OF LAPEER 
RESOLUTION #2024-03 

M-24 TUNNEL CONNECTION 
TAP GRANT RESOLUTION  

 
WHEREAS, the Lapeer City Commission is in support of the non-motorized pathway project 
known as the M-24 Tunnel Connector project, to provide an ADA accessible means of travel 
from the west side of M-24 to the east side M-24 at the Farmer’s Creek bridge utilizing the 
existing pedestrian tunnel constructed in 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, in addition to the funds that the City of Lapeer has expended in required property 
acquisition and preliminary engineering; and  



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 4 
 

 
WHEREAS, the city is prepared to expend all costs related to design engineering, construction 
engineering, and the 20% share of the construction costs, currently estimated at $165,000 for 
engineering, and $116,000 (local share) for construction; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Director of Parks, Recreation, and Cemetery Rodney Church shall be the 
administrative official designated to act as the agent/representative on behalf of the City of 
Lapeer during project development, and to sign a project agreement (contract) upon receipt of 
a grant funding Award; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Lapeer shall commit to owning/operating the constructed facility and 
funding/implementing a maintenance plan/program in perpetuity or causing operations and 
maintenance to occur. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Lapeer shall be responsible for 
engineering, permits, administration, potential cost overruns, and any non-participating items. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
City Manager Womack presented the City Commission with a Ribbon Policy for discussion; it 
will be brought back to the Commission for approval at a future meeting.   
 
40 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE – FOOD TRUCK 
FESTIVAL 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the Special Event: Chamber of Commerce – Food Truck Festival, as a co-sponsored 
event.  
The City Commission discussed if this event is only a non-profit organization event or could be 
a co-sponsored event.  The Commission expressed that this is a well-attended event and 
should be a co-sponsored event.   
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
41 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - FIREWORKS 
Moved by Atwood.  Seconded by Swindell. 
Approve the Special Event: Chamber of Commerce – Fireworks 2024, as a co-sponsored 
event.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
42 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE – LAPEER 
DAYS 
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Approve the Special Event: Chamber of Commerce – Lapeer Days 2024, as a co-sponsored 
event.  
  



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 5 
 

Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
43 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: KIWANIS – RUBBER DUCK DASH 
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Approve the Special Event: Kiwanis– Rubber Duck Dash, as a co-sponsored event.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
44 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: KIWANIS – FANTASY FOREST 
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Glisman. 
Approve the Special Event: Kiwanis – Fantasy Forest, as a co-sponsored event.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
45 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT: CHAMBER OF COMMERCE – CHRISTMAS 
PARADE 
Moved by Brady.  Seconded by Petrie. 
Approve the Special Event: Chamber of Commerce – Christmas Parade, as a co-sponsored 
event.  
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
46 2024 02-20  SPECIAL EVENT:  STEEL PATRIOTS FRIDAY NIGHT BIKES  
Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Atwood. 
Approve the Special Event: Steel Patriots Motorcycle Club, as a co-sponsor event, subject to 
providing insurance certificate.   
The City Commission held a discussion about the event taking place every Friday night 
throughout the summer.   
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Swindell. 
Nays:   Glisman, Petrie.  
MOTION CARRIED 3-2. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
None. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
47 2024 02-20  REAPPOINTMENT TO CEMETERY BOARD 
Moved by Mayor Marquardt. Moved by Swindell.  Seconded by Atwood. 
To re-appoint Mike Robinet to the Cemetery Board for a 5-year term to expire on April 1, 2029. 
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
  



Lapeer City Commission Regular Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

Page 6 
 

48 2024 02-20  APPOINTMENT TO BOARD OF REVEIW 
Moved by Glisman.  Seconded by Petrie. 
To appoint Didrik Krogh to the Board of Review for a term to expire January 1, 2025.   
Ayes:  Atwood, Brady, Glisman, Petrie, Swindell. 
Nays:   None. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
The Monthly Departmental Reports were received into the record, as presented. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
 
MAYOR/COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  
Commissioner Petrie:  Not against Bike Night, but in favor of compromise.           
 
Commissioner Brady:  Looks forward to being wowed by the best Bike Night ever. 
 
Commissioner Glisman:  Not against Bike Night; want to make sure she represents the people 
of the community.  Happy Presidents Day: hopes everyone was able to reflect on the two most 
popular presidents, George Washington and Abraham Lincoln.  On this day in 1962, John 
Glenn Jr. was the first American to orbit the earth. Controversy is good; happy to see so many 
people in the audience tonight.   
 
Commissioner Atwood: Commissioners should not feel that they have to justify how they vote.  
It can be difficult to be on the losing side of a 4-1 vote.  Respects people who stand up for what 
they vote for; the public should not bash people for the way they vote.  Better be the best dang 
Bike Night ever and hopes to see the businesses work together.   
 
City Manager Womack:  Swam with the sharks last week; this has been one of the better 
discussion meetings he has had in this career.  There were great talking points on both sides.   
 
Mayor Marquardt:  Read the list of local events.  Grateful to the City Clerk’s office and all the 
election workers who have worked hard on the elections.   
 
49 2024 02-20  ADJOURNMENT 
Motion by Swindell . 
To adjourn the regular meeting at 7:57 p.m.   
 
 
              
Debbie Marquardt, Mayor     Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 



ITEM D-1   

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
From: Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services 
Date: February 29, 2024 
RE: Bill Listing – February 16, 2024, through February 29, 2024 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the bill listing as presented. 

 

CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
I, Kelly Hanna, Director of Financial Services, have reviewed the bills for February 16, 2024, 
through February 29, 2024,  in the total amount of $2,480,294.88 and find them to be proper 
charges. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: March 4, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 29, 2024 
 Consent:  
 Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk 
 Public Hearing: 
 
 
S:\City Logo\City Logo 2022\Templates\Interoffice Memo\Interoffice Memo - AGENDA.docx 



                                        CHECK REGISTER FOR THE CITY OF LAPEER                                                       
                                     CHECK DATE FROM 02/16/2024 - 02/29/2024                                              

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount

02/29/2024 597523 LAPEER COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 1,546,611.62
02/29/2024 597522 LAPEER CO TREASURER 290,475.19
02/29/2024 597521 LAPEER CO INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL 249,349.04
02/29/2024 597524 LAPEER DISTRICT LIBRARY 77,870.71
02/29/2024 1976(E) DTE ENERGY 71,864.99
02/25/2024 1952(E) U.S. BANK 62,308.08
02/29/2024 1972(A) US BANK TRUST COMPANY, N A 45,520.63
02/29/2024 1964(A) MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL WORKERS 21,847.00
02/29/2024 597512 GREATER LAPEER TRANS AUTH 21,757.81
02/29/2024 1957(A) DETROIT SALT CO 20,035.51
02/29/2024 597516 JK OF MICHIGAN, LLC 8,250.00
02/29/2024 597506 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 8,016.61
02/29/2024 597537 T.G. PRIEHS PAVING CO 7,768.80
02/29/2024 1974(A) VECTOR TECH GROUP 5,000.00
02/29/2024 1959(A) FLETCHER FEALKO SHOUDY & FRANCIS PC 4,707.50
02/29/2024 597525 LITHO SPECIALISTS INC 3,586.00
02/29/2024 597498 ACTION MUNICIPAL SUPPLY, LLC 3,327.42
02/29/2024 597536 T. P. ISRAEL CO INC 2,820.00
02/29/2024 1958(A) DRIESENGA & ASSOCIATES, INC 2,450.00
02/29/2024 597529 MISS DIG SYSTEM INC 2,329.91
02/29/2024 1962(A) MAUK, JODI 1,807.70
02/29/2024 1970(A) SMITH, SHANNON 1,807.70
02/29/2024 597501 CARQUEST OF LAPEER 1,740.68
02/29/2024 1977(E) WINDSTREAM 1,502.88
02/29/2024 1973(A) VC3, INC. 1,478.75
02/29/2024 1961(A) JOHNSON CONTROLS SEC. SOLUTIONS 1,288.09
02/29/2024 597540 VERIZON WIRELESS 1,041.69
02/29/2024 1971(A) TAYLOR, SARAH 1,000.00
02/29/2024 597500 BLUE FLAME PROPANE INC 915.49
02/29/2024 597527 MGS ELECTRIC INC. 780.00
02/29/2024 1967(A) PREMIER SAFETY 758.20
02/29/2024 1955(A) BARUZZINI AQUATICS 755.38
02/29/2024 1968(A) ROWE INC 750.00
02/29/2024 597503 CRAIG'S SIGNS 725.00
02/29/2024 597499 BASIC BENEFITS LLC 701.52
02/29/2024 597532 PRO ENERGY CONSULTANTS OF ANN ARBOR 625.00
02/29/2024 1956(A) CRUISERS, INC 587.25
02/29/2024 1969(A) SCIENTIFIC BRAKE & EQUIPMENT CO. 432.96
02/29/2024 1965(A) PARAGON LABORATORIES, INC. 418.00
02/29/2024 597515 JACK DOHENY SUPPLIES INC 407.43
02/29/2024 1963(A) MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL SERVICES 400.15
02/29/2024 597513 HOLLAND HEATING & COOLING, INC 400.00



02/29/2024 597533 REMINGTON, MARTIN L. & NICOLE A. 354.60
02/29/2024 597542 WALDORF & SONS, INC 350.00
02/29/2024 597541 VILLAGE PRINTING 322.00
02/29/2024 1975(A) ZACHARY HILLMAN DO PLLC 300.00
02/29/2024 597526 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 256.72
02/29/2024 597509 EXPRESS CARE OF LAPEER 250.00
02/29/2024 597508 ECKER MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, INC 200.00
02/29/2024 597520 LAPEER CO HEALTH DEPT 200.00
02/29/2024 597514 HOLLAND HEATING & COOLING, INC 194.00
02/27/2024 1953(A) AMERICAN VIDEO TRANSFER INC 190.58
02/29/2024 597502 CONSUMERS ENERGY 160.75
02/29/2024 597543 WHITE'S GARAGE DOOR 150.00
02/29/2024 597510 GOVERNMENT FORMS AND SUPPLIES 110.00
02/29/2024 597504 CRAWLSPACE REMEDIATION 100.00
02/29/2024 597511 GOYETTE MECHANICAL 100.00
02/29/2024 597528 MICHIGAN HEATING COOLING & PLUMBING 100.00
02/29/2024 597538 THERMAL MASTER HEATING & COOLING 100.00
02/29/2024 597535 SAM'S CLUB 95.00
02/29/2024 1966(A) PREMIER OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 88.00
02/29/2024 597505 DELYNN'S DESIGNS, INC 85.00
02/29/2024 1954(A) ADVANCE MARKING SYSTEMS 68.39
02/29/2024 597507 DTE ENERGY 64.53
02/29/2024 597531 NEWBERY, KATHY 62.23
02/29/2024 1960(A) HYDRO-CHEM SYSTEMS, INC 55.15
02/29/2024 597519 LAPEER CO DRAIN COMMISSION 52.17
02/29/2024 597518 KLUCK, LAWRENCE 38.75
02/29/2024 597517 JOHNS, NANCY 9.80
02/29/2024 597530 MSHDA 5.84
02/29/2024 597539 UPS 5.68
02/29/2024 597534 ROACH, ALICE L 5.00

TOTAL $2,480,294.88



ITEM H-1 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: 2/29/2024 
RE: Special Event Request – Hunger Awareness Week 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve event.   
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
 
We received a request from the Stone Soup Pantry to hold their annual Hunger Awareness 
Week Fund Collection on May 10th and 11th 2024 from 9:00AM – 2:00PM. This event will utilize 
several intersections within the City of Lapeer. Safety cones and traffic vests will be required 
for persons out in the intersections collecting funds.   This event does not require assistance 
from any City of Lapeer Department. 
 
The following downtown intersections will be used: 
 
Nepessing St and Saginaw St  
Nepessing St and Court St 
Nepessing St and Calhoun St 
Nepessing St and Mason St 
 
See PDF File SE Hunger Awareness Week Fall 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
 
Annual Event 
 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: March 4, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 29, 2024 
 Consent:   X 
Administrative:   Reviewed By: 
Public Hearing: 
 













ITEM H-2 
To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Jeremy Howe, Chief of Police 
Date: February 29th, 2024 
RE: Special Event – Heart Warrior – 5K 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approve the event. 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
We have received a request from Warrior Grip Fitness Incorporated to hold an annual event 
titled, “Heart Warrior 5K” on June 15th, 2024, starting at 8 a.m. at the Oakdale Trails Pavilion.  
This event is a non-competitive 5k run/walk, see attached map for path location.  This event 
includes music, tents, selling of food and non-acholic drinks, and posted signage.  The 
expected attendance for the event is 200 people.      
 
BACKGROUND OR PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED INFORMATION  
This appears to be the second annual event conducted by the Warrior Grip Fitness 
Incorporated.  The organizer, Cody Wiggins, advised in the application that this would be 
annual.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: March 4, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 29, 2024 
 Consent:   X 
Administrative:   Reviewed By: 
Public Hearing: 
 























ITEM H-3 

S:\City Commission Paperless\2024 Paperless Agenda\03-04-24 Regular\H-3 2024 Presidential Primary Election Turn Out.docx 
 

To: Mike Womack, City Manager 
From: Romona Sanchez, City Clerk 
Date: February 29, 2024 
RE: 2024 Presidential Primary Election Turn Out 
 
CURRENT OR NEW INFORMATION  
 
With the passage of Proposal 2022-2, the 2024 Presidential Primary is the first election where 
all jurisdictions were required to offer 9-days of early voting to all registered voters.   
 
The City of Lapeer partnered with Lapeer Township and all registered voters of the City were 
able to cast their ballot in person at the Lapeer Township Hall offices beginning Saturday, 
February 17, 2024, between the hours of 9am and 5pm, and ending, Sunday, February 25, 
2024.  During these 9-days there were 25 voters that cast their ballots at the early voting site.   
 
On election day, Tuesday, February 27, 2024, the following is a breakdown of turn out: 
 
City of Lapeer    Registered Voters  Votes Cast  % Turn Out 
 Precinct 1      3,390       762     22.48%  
 Precinct 2      3,381        506     14.97% 
 
Breakdown of Votes Cast:  
 Precinct 1: 259 total votes 
 Precinct 2: 221 total votes 
 
 Absent Voter Counting Board (AVCB):  
 Precinct 1: 487 total votes 
 Precinct 2: 276 total votes 
 
Early Voting: 
 Precinct 1: 16   total votes 
 Precinct 2:   9  total votes 
  
 
Unofficial Results for Lapeer County can be found on the Lapeer County website: 
https://www.lapeercountymi.gov/departments/clerk/election___voter_information/election_res
ults.php  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.lapeercountymi.gov/departments/clerk/election___voter_information/election_results.php
https://www.lapeercountymi.gov/departments/clerk/election___voter_information/election_results.php


ITEM J-1 

 

To: Mayor and City Commission 
Date: February 28, 2024 
RE: Board & Commission Appointments                  
  

MAYORAL APPOINTMENT 
 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME 

CURRENT 
TERM 

EXPIRES 
TERM 

LENGTH 

 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 

 
COMMENTS 
Re:  STATUS 

Cemetery Board Vacancy Apr 1, 2028 5 Year  
 

Awaiting 
Recommendation 

County Center Board Vacancy Jan 1, 2025 1 Year 
 

 Awaiting 
Recommendation 

Local Officers 
Compensation 
Commission 

Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Oct 1, 2026 
Oct 1, 2027 

5 Year 
5 Year 

 

Awaiting 
Recommendation 

 
 
COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 

BOARD OR 
COMMISSION MEMBER NAME EXPIRATION TERM 

LENGTH 
NEW TERM 

EXPIRATION 
COMMENTS 
Re: STATUS 

Income Tax Board   
of Review Vacancy Dec 1, 2024 3 Year  Awaiting 

Recommendation 
Prison Liaison 

Committee Vacancy Apr 1, 2025 3 Year  Awaiting 
Recommendation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM REVIEW 
 
 Meeting Date: March 5, 2024 Date Reviewed: February 28, 2024 
 Consent: 
Administrative: X Reviewed By: R. Sanchez, City Clerk  
Public Hearing:  
 



1 

Downtown Development Authority 

Vision Statement - Visionary: 

“By 2032, Lapeer’s Historic Main Street will be a thriving, business-diverse destination. With support from 
Lapeer Main Street, the revitalized downtown district will offer a variety of opportunities for residents of all 
ages; including retail, dining, art, entertainment, seasonal events and residential living options.” 

February 21, 2024 

Thank you to those of you who were able to attend our board retreat in Owosso Michigan. I think we were 
able to have some very productive conversations and put together some great goals for 2024.  

What is exciting to me and I hope to everyone is that Lapeer is becoming an example that other 
communities are looking at for revitalizing their downtowns. The work we’ve been able to do over the last 
7 years is significant and we have a lot of great projects and plans in the works that will continue the 
positive growth and development of our community. In March we will be hosting Michigan Main Street for 
their annual spring workshop. We’ll be showcasing our downtown to 24 Main Street directors plus 
members of their boards and volunteers. In September we will be hosting the Michigan Downtown 
Association for their regional networking event. We are being considered to host the 2025 CEC 
conference. Communities are taking notice and that is a testament to the work the Lapeer Main Street 
DDA and The City of Lapeer have been able to do, working together, building partnerships, and utilizing 
our community-driven approach.  

Lapeer Main Street DDA 
• Lapeer Downtown Development Authority

o As mentioned previously, the top priority of the DDA this year is the renewal of the
Downtown Development Plan and TIF plan. The Executive Committee has been meeting
regularly to review the current plan and start work on draft updates. As part of the
process, the DDA will need to put together a Citizen council made up of residents of the
DDA. This council will meet with the Executive Committee or DDA to provide resident
feedback on the plan. Discussion also took place around making sure that the renewal
reflects our vision for the downtown, including the potential for large developments and
future building within the DDA district.

1. As outlined previously, the Development plan should:
1. Start with a brief history of the organization and accomplishments.
2. Include Goals and Objectives
3. Goals – include the what, why, and where
4. Objectives – How will the DDA achieve the goal
5. Action Strategy/Implementation – The who and when

2. The DDA TIF Plan Should include:
1. The Development Plan

ITEM K-1



2 

 

2. A detailed explanation of the tax increment procedure 
3. The maximum amount of bonded indebtedness to be incurred 
4. The Duration of the program 
5. Estimated Impact of Tax Increment Financing on the assessed values of 

taxing jurisdictions 
6. A projected increase in property values due to inflation 
7. May show a constant percentage of growth each year 
8. Redevelopment of specific properties or development of underutilized 

properties 
o Annual Board Retreat – The annual retreat took place on January 20, in downtown 

Owosso. Attached to our packet you will find the Transformation strategy with updated 
goals and priorities along with measures of success. Page 4 & 5 of the report include 
additional note and discussion from the retreat. A few key points from this meeting 
include: 

1. Create a standing Committee Chair meeting.  Committee chairs should meet 
regularly throughout the year to discuss committee priorities and progress toward 
meeting measures of success.   

2. Every committee should develop work plans for each priority 
project/program/event to ensure tasks, timelines and budgets are well 
documented.  Board members should approve completed work plans and review 
progress monthly.  

3. Develop a Fundraising Committee that is separate from the Outreach Committee.   

• Michigan Main Street Program/Michigan Downtown Association 
o Michigan Main Street 

1. Lapeer will be hosting the Michigan Main Street Spring Workshop which will be 
taking place on March 11 & 12. 

• March 11 will be for Main Street Directors only and we will be utilizing 
Gallery 194. 

• We will be having dinner as a group on Monday. (Time TBD) Board 
members are welcome to join us. Cost for dinner would be on your own.  

• March 12 will be open to Directors and Board members and we will be 
utilizing Stones Throw Theater and Beyer’s Furniture.  

• Tuesday is a full day, 9am – 4:30pm 

• The agenda for both days is attached.  
2. National Conference: 

• I’ve reserved two hotel rooms at the main hotel for the National 
Conference and I have registered for myself for the conference. To send 
an additional representative (Jill) would be the $465. Currently we’ve 
spent about $3000 from our Main Street Line Item. We have budgeted 
$12,000. Hotel cost was slightly higher than anticipated. However I 
believe we do have the room in our budget to send two people to the 
National Conference this year.  

• Registration $465 (Main Street pays for 1 registration) 

• Hotel $200 night x 4 = $850 

• Airfare $500 

• Totals = $1350 for 1 person or $3165 for 2 people. Plus misc. costs 
(Food, mileage etc) 

3. Upcoming Michigan Main Street Dates to be aware of: 

1. March 11 & 12 – Spring Workshop (Planning and Zonning) in 

Lapeer 

2. May 5 – May 8 – National Conference in Birmingham Alabama 

3. September 23 – 24 – MMS Fall Workshop – Cheboygan 

 

 



3 

 

o Michigan Downtown Association 

1. March 6 is the MDA’s Lansing Day, this is the annual day that we meet 

with State Legislators to talk about downtowns, the role they play in 

communities, challenges facing our communities, and also successes. It’s 

also an opportunity to get to know our legislators a bit better and let them 

know that we can be a resource for them.  

2. March 7, is the MDA’s annual spring workshop. This year’s workshop 

will take place in East Lansing. I will be presenting at this year’s 

conference talking about some of the projects and things we’ve done in 

Lapeer for creative place-making and business development. 

3. We have been asked to host the MDA’s regional networking event on 

September 26. This is the Thursday before Michigan Downtown Day. It 

would have no cost to us (unless we want to sponsor a part of it).  
o Upcoming Dates to be aware of MDA: 

1. March 6 – MDA Lansing Day 
2. March 7 – MDA Spring Workshop 
3. May 31 – MDA Summer Workshop 

 

Business Development - Economic Vitality  
  

• Business Recruitment/Retention and Support 
o The Business Development Committee met on February 21, sticking to it’s 3rd 

Wednesday of the month schedule. 
o The committee briefly reviewed the updated goals and priorities discussed at the board 

retreat.  
o We held our first business owner meet-up event “Rise and Shine” with Lapeer Main 

Street. We had 12 participants at our first event and hope to build on that. The committee 
spent time looking at options for upcoming meetings so that we could put together a 
schedule of topics and get the word out to promote the event. Possible future topics could 
include: 

▪ A presentation on opportunities and resources available through the Lapeer 
Development Corporation and another session on opportunities and resources 
available through the Michigan Small Business Development Center.  

▪ A presentation/Conversation with the City to discuss opportunities and resources 
through the City and also to educate businesses (new and existing) on following 
proper procedures.  

▪ Social Media Marketing – Utilizing it effectively and also proper social media 
etiquette.  

▪ Building Brand Awareness and marketing beyond social media.  
 

o Current Empty storefronts and available properties include:. 
1. 380 N. Saginaw (next to C&D collision)  
2. 368 Jefferson St. – Forever Friends Network/Perkins Flowers 
3. 18 E. Nepessing St. – City Owned property – Empty, not currently for 

sale 
4. 350 N. Court Street – 2nd/3rd Floor office space available 
5. 44 W. Park Street – Calvellis For Sale (Including Liquor License) –  
6. 606 N. Saginaw Street – multiple units  
7. 477 W. Nepessing St – Lease Pending for a Chiropractic space.  
8. 10 E. Nepessing St. – Previously Flannagans 
9. 114 Park Street – Located next to the Chamber and Holiday Depot 

 
 



4 

 

o New Businesses open: 
1. 92 W. Nepessing Street – Fae and Whimsey Soapworks 
2. 128 W. Nepessing Street – Hummingbird House Designs.  
3. 410 W. Nepessing Street Ste 207 – Oshana Healing and Crystals 

 
o New Business Opening: 

1. 450 W. Nepessing Street – Kin Thai – March 1, Soft Opening 
2. 240 W. Nepessing Street. – KC Insurance 
3. 606 N. Saginaw St. – Unlimited Modular 
4. 606 N Saginaw St – Church Light Communities 
5. 328 W. Nepessing St – Cherry’s Market – Soft Opening in Late Winter/Early 

Spring 
6. 477 W. Nepessing St – Chiropractic Office 
7. 606 W. Nepessing St – EXP Accounting 
8. 606 W. Nepessing St. – Passeno Realtor 

 
o Business engagement: 

1. In February I had meetings with 6 different businesses to discuss development 
projects, business incentives, and possible grants. This included 2 property 
owners with available space, 1 existing property owner looking to expand, and 3 
pending/potential new businesses.  

 

 
Placemaking - Design: 

o The placemaking committee met on February 20.  
o I provided an update on our Vibrancy Grant application, including discussing the 

workplan that was submitted and what would be included if we are awarded the grant. 
The project could potentially include: 

▪ Wayfinding Signs 
▪ Street Light Banners for the winter months 
▪ An additional downtown mural 
▪ Dog Bandana’s to start a Hype Hound Program 
▪ Dog Bowls to increase pet friendliness downtown, recognizing that there is a 

sizeable economic benefit to pet-friendly communities 
▪ Downtown gift cards to help start an ambassador and thank you program.  

o The committee reviewed the updated goals and projects from this year’s retreat and 
updated priority items on our task list. 

 
 
Outreach – Organization & Promo and Marketing: 

• The Outreach committee met on Feb. 13 at 5pm at The Doghouse. The committee set the 2nd 
Tuesday of the month at 5pm as the time for their monthly meeting.  

• The committee reviewed and updated sponsorship opportunities for Lapeer Main Street. The 
updated “draft” is attached to your packet.  
 

• DDA Online (social media, Website)  
o Social Media: 

▪ Facebook 

• Followers = 6854 followers on Facebook 

• Reach = 14,404 in the last 28 Days 

• 27 New Page Likes in the last 28 days 

• 47 New Followers in the last 28 days 

• Demographics = 80% Women 20% Men 
 



5 

 

▪ Instagram 

• Followers = 1090 

• Reach = 205 in the last 28 days 
 

Special Events: 
• Work Plans are started and attached for the following events: 

1. Monday Night Car Cruise – May 6  - September 10 
2. Ladies Night Out – Spring – May 17 
3. Summer Concert Series – Thursdays June 6 – Aug 8 
4. Porch Fest – July 20 
5. Michigan Downtown Day – September 28 
6. Haunted Lapeer Ghost Tours – Oct. 4 & 5 
7. Treat Walk – October 26 
8. Ladies Night Out – Fall – November 15 
9. WinterFest – December 6 & 7  

 

Partnerships:  
• I’ve been in conversations with MSU-Extension for the Connecting Entrepreneurial Communities 

Conference. They are excited to have Lapeer attending the conference in Cadillac on May 30 & 
31. They will make an official decision on the next community to host before May with the hopes 
of announcing publicly the host community at the May Conference.  

• As a recap. 
o Connecting Entrepreneurial Communities Conference – Lapeer has the opportunity to 

host the Connecting Entrepreneurial Communities Conference in 2025. The CEC 
conference is a 2 day conference focused on building small communities that takes place 
in the communities. This would be a great opportunity for Lapeer and one that could also 
create an economic boost for the community. The conference takes place within the 
downtown, using downtown businesses to host workshops and sessions. The conference 
will usually attract 100-plus attendees, making it great for shops, restaurants, and hotels 
in the area. Hosting the conference comes with certain requirements that the DDA and 
City would have to meet. The 2022 Conference had 115 attendees that represented 38 
different communities.  

o Lapeer will be sending a team of 6 people to the conference in Cadillac on May 30/31. 
The cost will be approximately $1600 plus travel.  

 

Administrative: 

• Staff:   We have moved into the new DDA office as of February 16. We are still in the process of 
making it our own and would like to take some time to update the office to make sure it 
represents the brand that is Lapeer Main Street. This includes updated paint on the walls and 
making sure the space is inviting. In the meantime, stop in and check out the new space and we 
look forward to having committee meetings there.  
 
 
 
 

James Alt 
Lapeer DDA Executive Director,   
810-728-6598 
james@lapeerdda.com 

mailto:james@lapeerdda.com


CITY OF LAPEER, 576 LIBERTY PARK, LAPEER, LAPEER COUNTY, MICHIGAN 48446 
2024 MEETING DATES 

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et. Seq., notice is hereby given that every meeting of the City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions of the 
City of Lapeer shall be open to the public.  Notice is further given that the following City Council, Boards, Authorities and Commissions are regular meeting dates for 2024.  A 
public notice of each special or rescheduled meeting will be posted at least 18 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 

Board/Commission Location Time January February March April May June July August September October November December 
City Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 2, 16 5, 20 4, 18 1, 15 6, 20 3, 17 1, 15 5, 19 3, 16 7, 21 4, 18 2, 16 

1st & 3rd Monday   of each Month 
Cemetery Board 

3rd Thursday of Oct 
Mt. Hope Cemetery 
Building 

2:00 P.M. -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 17 -- -- 

Downtown Development 
 Authority 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 24 28 27 24 22 26 24 28 25 23 27 25 

4th Wednesday   of each Month 
Economic Development Corp 
(EDC) & Tax Increment 
Finance Auth (TIFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M. 
10 14 13 10 8 12 10 14 11 9 13 11 

2nd Wednesday   As needed 
Housing Commission 

3rd Thursday 
2nd Floor 
Conference Room 

4:00 P.M. 18 15 21 18 16 20 18 15 19 17 21 19 

 of each Month 
Local Development Finance 
Authority (LDFA) 

2nd Floor Conference 
Room 

8:00 A.M 5 4 3 3 

1st Tuesday March/June/Sept/ Dec as Needed 
Park Board -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 6 -- 
Planning Commission Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 11 8 14 11 9 13 11 8 12 10 14 12 

2nd Thursday of each Month 
Zoning Board of Appeals Commission Chambers 6:30 P.M. 22 26 25 22 27 24 22 26 23 28 25 23 

4th Monday of each Month 

Address of the above locations are as follows: 
Commission Chambers:    City Hall, 576 Liberty Park 
Mt. Hope Cemetery:          1230 Park Street 

Romona Sanchez, CMC 
City Clerk 

City of Lapeer  
576 Liberty Park, Lapeer  
Lapeer County, Michigan  48446   (810) 664-5231 

N-1



MAT. TRANS.   

 

To: City Commission 
Date: February 29, 2024 
RE: Material Transmittals 
 

1. Lapeer County Board of Commissioners – February 22, 2024 – Agenda. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 




















































































	03-04-24 City Commission Agenda
	A-1 Minutes 02-20-24 Regular
	D-1  Bill Listing 03-04-24
	H-1 SEA Hunger Awareness Week Spring 2024
	H-2 SEA Heart Warrior 5K 2024
	H-3 2024 Presidential Primary Election Turn Out
	J-1 Boards & Commissions
	K-1 Monthly Report - DDA-Alt - 2-21-2024
	N-1 2024  Bds & Comm Meeting Dates
	Material Transmittal



